
Palm Beach State College Page 1  

PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AGENDA ● JANUARY 16, 2024 

Regular Meeting Lake Worth Campus - DBOT 4:00 PM 
Multi-Media Board Room, CE-129, 4200 Congress Avenue, Lake Worth, FL 33461 

Palm Beach State College advances the economic and social growth of our community and global 
workforce through innovative, high-quality learning experiences that transform student’s lives. 

I. MEETING CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. COMMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS

Student Comment:

Daniela Perez, Vice President, SGA Loxahatchee Groves Campus

Ryan Steeghs, Vice President, SGA Boca Campus

Ariel Reda, Advisor, SGA Lake Worth Campus

III. AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS

IV. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES

Approve the November 21, 2023 Minutes

V. APPROVAL OF BOARD AGENDA

A. Abstentions by Board Members
B. Public Comments

VI. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Academic Affairs/Academic Innovation and Strategy/Student Services
B. Finance and Administration
C. Information Services
D. Human Resources

1. Approve Revision to Appendix A of the CBA
Staff Contact: Mr. Michael Pustizzi, Chief Human Resources Officer

VII. APPROVAL ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

VIII. TRUSTEES' COMMITTEE REPORTS

IX. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

A. Fall 2023 Enrollment Update

Presenter: Dr. Peter Barbatis, Vice President, Student Services and
Enrollment Management

1



Agenda District Board of Trustees January 16, 2024 

Palm Beach State College Page 2 

B. Partnership with Related Together

Presenter: Dr. Karline Prophete, Interim Dean, Student Development and
Success

C. Communications and Public Affairs Update

Presenter: Ms. Angela Harrington, Communications and Public Affairs
Chief

D. Polo Engagement for 2024

Presenter: Mr. David Rutherford, Vice President, Institutional
Advancement and CEO, The Foundation for Palm Beach State College

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A. Academic Affairs/Academic Innovation and Strategy/Student Services
B. Finance and Administration

1. Financial Review and Analysis
Staff Contact: Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and

 Administration 
2. Planning and Construction Projects Status Report Dated December

1, 2023
Staff Contact:  Mr. Kirk Stetson, Manager, Facilities, Planning and

 Construction 
C. Information Services

1. IT Project Contracts
Presenter: Mr. Ken Libutti, Chief Information Officer

XI. ACTION ITEMS

A. Academic Affairs/Academic Innovation and Strategy/Student Services
B. Finance and Administration

1. Ratify Contract with Jurney and Associates, Inc. Using the Broward
County Public Schools Contract #RFP-FY23-239 Guardian School
Security Services in the Amount of $1,848,096 through December
31, 2025

Presenters:  Dr. Delsa R. Bush, Director, Campus Safety and Risk
Management and Ms. Jennifer Alvarez, Director, Procurement

XII. OTHER BUSINESS

2



Agenda District Board of Trustees January 16, 2024 

Palm Beach State College Page 3 

XIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. MLK Celebration
Palm Beach State College will host the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. 
Celebration in the Duncan Theatre starting at 11:00 am on Thursday, 
January 18, 2024. The event will feature keynote speaker Leonard 
Marshall, former NFL defensive lineman. Mr. Marshall won two Super 
Bowls with the NY Giants and co-author of “When the Cheering Stops.”.

B. February DBOT Meeting
The next regular District Board of Trustees meeting is scheduled for 
Tuesday, February 27, 2024, on the Boca Raton Campus in the Humanities 
and Technology Building. The Boca Campus is located at 801 Palm Beach 
State College Drive, Boca Raton, FL 33431.

C. Construction and Contracting Program Best Practices Workshop

The College will hold a Construction and Contracting Program Best 
Practices Workshop on Thursday, February 8, 2024, from 1:00-5:00 pm 
with Saul Ewing on the Lake Worth Campus.  

D. STEAM Event

The Yvonne S. Boyce STEAM luncheon will be held on Tuesday, April 
16th at the Kravis Center from 11:30-1:30. Our featured Guest Speaker 
will be Gary Vaynerchuk.

XIV. ADJOURNMENT

*Palm Beach State College District Board of Trustees welcomes public comments during its regular monthly meetings.  Any person or group 
wishing to make public comments must complete a “Public Comment Card”. Procedures for making public comments are as follows: 

1.  Complete comment card including your name, address, telephone number and agenda item number (if appropriate). 

2.  Submit the completed card to the executive administrative assistant to the board (seated on the right side of the dais). Anyone wishing to 
speak must submit a completed card prior to the start of the meeting. Comment cards will not be accepted at any other time of the meeting. 

3.  When your name is called, approach the podium with the microphone, and state your name and address for the record.

4.  Comments are limited to three (3) minutes.  This is the opportunity for persons wishing to make public comments regarding an agenda 
item to speak. 

Any person(s) not adhering to the Board’s guidelines or who make comments which could be perceived as slanderous or disruptive may be 
barred from making future comments before the Board. 

3



          Agenda Item: 6.D.1  
Consent   

   
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 
Agenda Transmittal Sheet 

 
Date:   January 16, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Revision to the Appendix A of the Collective Bargaining Agreement 

  Mr. Michael Pustizzi, Chief Human Resources Officer 

Summary: 
 
Background/Pertinent Facts: The District Board of Trustees ratified the collective 
bargaining agreement dated July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2026. The agreement 
specified that Appendix A would be discussed for clarification during the contract 
period. Appendix A outlines the Academic Rank. 
 
On December 7, 2023, the United Faculty of Palm Beach State College agreed to 
the following modifications: 
 

A. Remove “Counselors” requirements as the college does not have this 
classification. 

B. Instructional Faculty and Librarian requirements are defined in one category. 
For clarity, they have been placed into separate categories labeled 
“Academic Rank for Instructional Faculty” and “Academic Rank for 
Librarians.” 

C. Changes have been made to simplify unclear language in the Instructional 
Faculty and Librarian categories 

 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed: Collaboration    
 
 
Duration of Contract: July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2026 
 
 
RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
 

4



Attachments: Academic Rank V4 Markup  
 
              
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 
 

5



Page | 1
 

Appendix A 
 
The College and the Union have agreed to the titles of full-time instructional faculty, counselors, 
librarians, and CCP Instructors as follows: 

 
Academic Rank for Instructional Faculty, Counselors, and Librarians 

 
 

A. Assistant Professor 
 

1. Bachelor’s degree in field of specialization; or 
 

2. Appropriate training or licensure and a minimum of two years of successful experience 
in the field of specialization for instructional faculty in the creative or applied arts, and 
in the specialized, professional, technical, or vocational fields; or , present evidence 
of professional competency or license. This competence is based upon appropriate 
training and at least two years of successful experience as a practitioner in the 
occupational field.  

 
3. Master’s degree with a major in a field other than the assigned teaching field. 

 
B. Associate Professor 

 

1. Master’s degree with eighteen (18) graduate semester hours in the assigned field of 
specialization; or its equivalent in the event the individual is pursuing a planned 
doctoral program in which the master’s degree is not to be awarded. 

 
2. In the creative or applied arts and in specialized, professional, technical or vocational 

fields, hold a Rank II vocational certificate, or have completed the necessary 
prerequisites which would qualify one for a Rank II vocational certificate if it continued 
to be issued after June 30, 1979 and present evidence of having completed at least two 
years validated work experience in the field assigned or have six semester hours of 
vocational-technical courses and ten (10) Continuing Education Units (CEU’s) 
approved by the department/division chairperson and the Vice President of Academic 
Affairs and have at least three years of full-time teaching experience in one’s field at 
Palm Beach State College and be recommended for continuing contract.  

 
3. Librarians must have a Master’s Degree in Library Science.  

 
4. Counselors must have a Master’s degree with a graduate major in guidance 

and counseling.  
 
C. Professor I 

 

1. Instructional faculty must meet at least one of these educational requirements: 

6



Page | 2
 

(a) Master’s degree with a minimum of eighteen (18) graduate semester hours in the 
assigned teaching field of specialization, and an additional eighteen (18) graduate 
semester hours earned after degree conferral. , preferably in the assigned area 
of specialization (Coursework outside the teaching field of specialization may be 
accepted with prior approval by the Academic Dean’s Council. for all courses 
outside area of specialization).  

 
(b) Doctorate degree, or equivalent terminal degree such as M.F.A., in the assigned 

teaching field of specialization. Doctorate degree outside the field of specialization 
may be accepted with prior approval by the Academic Dean’s Council. Minimum 
of three (3) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an accredited 
secondary school or college is required; or in some field of specification required 
by Palm Beach State College, except that there will be no teaching experience 
required for instructional faculty, counselors or librarians with a Doctorate degree 
who meet the qualifications specified in C-1 of Professor I. This sentence was 
revised to be more concise, and the experience portions moved below. 

 
2. Instructional faculty must meet at least one of these experience requirements: 

 
(a) Minimum of three (3) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an 

accredited secondary school or college. and appropriate terminal degree in field of 
specialization such as M.F.A. or other terminal degree not defined under 
Professor III. 

 
(b) There will be no teaching experience required for instructional faculty with an earned 

doctorate degree. 
 

3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 
 
D. Professor II 

 

1. Instructional faculty, counselors or librarians must meet at least one of these 
educational requirements: 

 
(a) Acceptance for candidacy for a Doctor’s doctorate degree in the assigned 

teaching field of specialization. Doctoral candidacy must be as verified by a the 
regionally accredited degree-granting institution. 

 
(b) Master’s degree with at least eighteen (18) semester hours in the field of 

specialization as assigned plus an additional forty-eight (48) semester hours in a 
program leading to a Doctorate degree in field other than one’s specialization and 
accepted for candidacy for the Doctorate degree. At least twenty-four (24) of the 
forty-eight (48) semester hours must be in the instructional faculty, counselor or 
librarian’s field of specialization or approved related areas. A minimum of twelve 
(12) of the twenty-four (24) semester hours must be in the area of specialization.  

7



Page | 3
 

 
(c) Persons accepted into a doctorate program who do not receive a master’s degree 

are required to have at least forty-two (42) semester hours in their field of 
specialization or approved related areas. At least thirty (30) of these forty-two (42) 
hours must be in the assigned teaching field of specialization; or  

 
(d) Doctorate in the assigned teaching field of specialization as assigned which may 

include PhD, EdD, MD, DVM, DO, DDS, JD, or equivalent; or terminal degree in 
field of specialization. 

(e) Doctorate with a major other than the assigned teaching field of specialization to 
which assigned. In addition, the instructional faculty, counselor, or librarian’s 
master’s degree must include at least eighteen (18) graduate semester hours in 
the assigned teaching field of specialization and the doctorate must include at least 
twenty-four (24) semester hours in assigned teaching field of specialization or 
approved related areas. At least twelve (12) of these twenty-four (24) semester 
hours must be in field of specialization.  

2. Instructional faculty must meet at least one of the following experience requirements: 
(a) A minimum of seven (7) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an 

accredited secondary school or college with three (3) of the seven (7) years at 
Palm Beach State College; or 
 

(b) A minimum of ten years full-time teaching experience at an accredited secondary 
school or college; or is required. 

 
(c) A minimum of five (5) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an 

accredited secondary school or college is required for instructional faculty, 
counselors or librarians with an earned doctorate who meet the qualifications in 
D1(a), D1(b) or D1(c) above. 

 
3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 

 
E. Professor III 

 

1. Instructional faculty, counselor or librarians must meet at least one of these 
educational requirements: 

 
(a) Doctorate in the assigned teaching field of specialization as assigned which may 

include PhD, EdD, MD, DVM, DO, DDS, JD, or equivalent; or terminal degree in 
field of specialization. 

 
(b) Doctorate with a major other than the assigned teaching field of specialization to 

which assigned. In addition, the instructional faculty, counselor, or librarian’s 
master’s degree must include at least eighteen (18) graduate semester hours in 

8



Page | 4
 

the assigned teaching field of specialization and the doctorate must include at least 
twenty-four (24) semester hours in assigned teaching field of specialization; or  or 
approved related areas. At least twelve (12) of these twenty-four (24) semester 
hours must be in field of specialization. 

 
(c) Persons with a doctorate degree who did not receive a master’s degree are 

required to have at least forty-two (42) semester hours in their assigned teaching 
field of specialization or in approved related areas. At least thirty (30) of these forty-
two (42) semester hours must be in the field of specialization. 

 
2. Instructional faculty must meet at least one of the following experience requirements: 

 
(a) A minimum of ten (10) years of successful full-time teaching experience is 
required at an accredited secondary school or college. Five (5) of the ten (10) years 
must be at Palm Beach State College; or  

(b) A minimum of fifteen (15) years of successful full-time teaching experience at 
other an accredited secondary schools or colleges. 

 
3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 

 

Academic Rank for Librarians 

A. Associate Professor 

1. Librarians must have a master’s degree in library science. 

B. Professor I 

1. A master’s degree in library science and a minimum of three (3) years of full-time 
librarian/professor I or teaching experience at an accredited secondary school or college. 
 

2. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 

C. Professor II 

1. Librarian/Professor II must meet at least one of these educational requirements: 

(a) Doctorate in the assigned teaching field of specialization; or  

(b) Acceptance for candidacy for a doctorate degree in the assigned teaching field of 
specialization. Doctoral candidacy must be verified by the regionally accredited 
degree-granting institution; or 

(c) Acceptance for candidacy for a doctorate, or an earned doctorate, outside the 
assigned teaching field of specialization. Must have a master’s degree in library 

9



Page | 5
 

science and an additional twenty-four (24) graduate semester hours at a doctorate 
level in the assigned teaching field of specialization. Doctoral candidacy must be 
verified by the regionally accredited degree-granting institution. 

2. Librarian/Professor II must meet at least one of these experience requirements: 

(a) A minimum of five (5) years of full-time experience for librarians with an earned 
doctorate degree; or  

(b) A minimum of seven (7) years of successful full-time librarian or teaching experience 
at an accredited secondary school or college with three (3) of the seven (7) years 
at Palm Beach State College; or  

(c) A minimum of ten years of full-time librarian or teaching experience at other 
accredited secondary schools or colleges. 

3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate 
cause. 

D. Professor III 

1. Librarian/Professor III must meet at least one of these educational requirements: 

(a) Doctorate in the assigned teaching field of specialization; or  

(b) Doctorate with a major other than the assigned teaching field of specialization. In 
addition, the librarian’s master’s degree must include at least eighteen (18) 
graduate semester hours in the assigned teaching field of specialization and the 
doctorate must include at least twenty-four (24) semester hours in the assigned 
teaching field of specialization.   

2. Librarian/Professor III must meet at least one of the following experience 
requirements:

(a) A minimum of ten (10) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an 
accredited secondary school or college. Five (5) of the ten (10) years must be at 
Palm Beach State College; or   

(b) A minimum of fifteen (15) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an 
accredited secondary school or college. 

 
3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 

 
Academic Rank for CCP Instructors 

 
A. CCP instructor I 

10



Page | 6
 

 

1. Standard requirements commensurate with the respective accrediting body and 
requirements identified by the College’s Academic Management Manual. 

B. CCP Instructor II 
 

1. CCP Instructor II must meet at least one of these educational requirements: 

(a) Associate’s degree within in the assigned teaching field of specialization. or 
Coursework outside the field of teaching specialization may be accepted with prior 
approval of degree and coursework by the Academic Dean’s Council; or for all 
courses outside of area of specialization; and/or  

(b) Relevant certification or licensure beyond the standard credentialing for the 
position. 

 
2. A minimum of three (3) years of successful full-time teaching experience at an 

accredited secondary school or college is required. 
 

3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 
 
C. CCP Instructor III 
 

1. PSAV CCP Instructor III must meet at least one of these educational requirements: 
 

(a) Bachelor’s degree within in the assigned teaching field area of specialization. or 
Coursework outside the field of teaching specialization may be accepted with prior 
approval of degree and coursework by the Academic Dean’s Council; or for all 
courses outside of area of specialization; and/or 

 
(b) Terminal level certification or licensure in the assigned teaching field of 

specialization, such as Educator, or Inspector, or equivalent level certifications or 
licensure, or equivalent certification or licensure. may be accepted with prior 
approval of certification or licensure by the Academic Dean’s Council. 

 
2. CCP Instructor III must meet at least one of these experience requirements: 

 
(a) A minimum of six (6) years of successful full-time teaching experience is required 

at an accredited secondary school or college with two (2) of the six (6) years at 
Palm Beach State College; or 
 

(b) or a A minimum of eight (8) years of full-time teaching experience at an other 
accredited schools or colleges. 

 
3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 

 

11



Page | 7
 

D. CCP Instructor IV 
 

1. CCP Instructor IV must meet at least one of these educational requirements:  

(a) Master’s degree within area in the assigned teaching field of specialization. 
Master’s degree outside the field of teaching specialization may be accepted with 
prior approval of degree and coursework by the Academic Dean’s Council; or 

(b) or a A minimum of eighteen (18) graduate semester hours within area in the 
assigned teaching field of specialization. or prior approval of degree and 
Coursework outside the field of teaching specialization may be accepted with prior 
approval by the Academic Dean’s Council for all courses outside of area of 
specialization. 

2. CCP Instructor IV must meet at least one of these experience requirements: 

(a) A minimum of eight (8) years of successful full-time teaching experience is required 
at an accredited secondary school or college with four (4) of the eight (8) years at 
Palm Beach State College; or  

(b) A minimum of ten years of full-time teaching experience at other an accredited 
schools or colleges. 

 
3. Administration can deny academic rank to any individual based upon appropriate cause. 

12



Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees Meeting

Fall 2023 
Enrollment Update

Fall Commencement
Dr. Peter Barbatis

VP, Student 
Services/Enrollment 

Management

January, 16, 2024
13



Unduplicated Fall 2023 Headcount

0%

-4%

+1%

-3%

-1%

14



Fall 2023 FTE
-0.1%

-1.1%

-0.9% -0.05% +1.6%

15



Learning Modality
Fall 2022

• In-person: 23.8%
• Mix in-person/Online: 33.4%
• Fully Online/Live Online: 42.8%

 
23.4%

33.2%

43%

All in-person/Hybrid 
classes
Mix in-person/Online 
classes
All fully online/Live 
online classes

16



Ethnicity
Fall 2022

Asian:  3.3%
Black:   28%
Hispanic:  34.5%
White:  28.3%
Native American:  .03%
More than one: 2.7%
Not Report:  3% 

Asian
3%

Black
28%

Hispanic
34%

White
28%

Native 
American/Pacific 

Islander
0%

More than one race
3%

Not reported
3%

Chart Title

Race and ethnicity Asian Black Hispanic

White Other races More than one race Not reported

17



Primary Program of Study Distribution
FALL 2023 Fall 2022

• Transient Students: 182
• Students with two primary POS: 38
• Other non-award students: 1,229
• Dual enrolled or early admission: 2,759
• College Credit Certificate: 466
• Career Certificate Program: 811
• Baccalaureate programs: 1,688
• Associate in Science: 3,238
• Associate in Arts: 13,779
• Apprenticeship: 170
• All other awards: 84

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000 14,000 16,000

All other awards

Apprenticeship

Associate in Arts

Associate in Science

Baccalaureate programs

Career Certificate Program

College Credit Certificate

Dual enrolled or early admission

Other non-award students

Student with two primary POS

Transient students

71

115

13,953

3,186

1,499

893

441

2,954

1,228

25

166

18



Age Distribution
Fall 2022

• Under 18:  10.9% 
• 18 to 19:  27.2%
• 20 to 21: 18.7%
• 22 to 24:  13.8%
• 25 to 29: 11.2%
• 30 to 34: 6.9%
• 35 to 44: 7%
• 45+:  4.3%

 

12%

27%

18%

14%

11%

6%

7%
4%

Under 18

18 to 19

20 to 21

22 to 24

25 to 29

30 to 34

35 to 44

45+

Fall 2023

Fall 2022 Fall 2023

Average age 23.9 23.9

Median age 21 20

19



Full Time/Part Time

Fall 2022 Fall 2023
FT    29.3%
PT    70.7%

FT    30.5%
PT    69.5%

20



Gender

60%

39%

1%

Female

Male

Not Reported

Fall 2022
Female 59.1%
Male 39.4%
NR        1.5%

21



Enrollment Campaigns

• Communication/Concierge Campaign
 
• Weekly Register and Win Early Raffles

• Saturday Orientations

• Open House, August 10th, 2023

• Continued Registration Nudges
22



Preliminary Spring 2024 Enrollment

23



Fall 2023 Commencement
Keynote Speaker: Kenneth A. Himmel, President/CEO of Related Urban 

Honorary BAS Degree: George T. Elmore, President of Hardrives, Inc.

804 graduates walked; 4200+ guests   
 
37 veterans
 
 
Youngest –        Age 16 
                          Early Admission 
 
 
Most Senior –    Age 72  
                        Associate in Arts 
 

Degrees Total Grads
Associate in Arts 1048
Career Certificate Program 243
College Credit Certificates 242
Associate in Science 229
Bachelor of Applied Science 120
Bachelor of Science 61
Advanced Technical Certificates 2

24



Title

25



Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees Meeting

Office of 
Communications and 

Public Affairs
Angela Harrington
Chief Communications 

and Public Affairs 
Officer

January, 16, 2024 26



Expanding Brand Awareness in Diverse Markets
Male and Hispanic Markets

ESPN Digital
29.9 million viewers nationwide

Deportes Radio – Spanish
50,000 listeners

Haitian Community
RHAI 980 AM and 103.9 FM,  Haitian Creole Radio
3,000 listeners

27



ESPN Digital Activation
• Palm Beach State College commercials served both on ESPN.com and when 

fans are streaming live ESPN games or programming. 
• All ads are served to the Palm Beach County area. When fans are browsing 

ESPN via their desktop or smart phone reading articles, checking score 
updates, or watching highlight videos in Palm Beach County they can see 
PBSC ads. 

• Video ads also run on ESPN when fans are streaming live games and 
inventory on ESPN across ESPN's family of networks (ESPN, ESPN+, ESPN2, 
ABC on ESPN)

• ESPN display banner ads rotate to promote PBSC numerous programs of 
study or marketing messages and run these ads both these both in English 
and Spanish.

28



ESPN Digital Activation
Palm Beach State College received:
43,570 Video Impressions

• 92%+ Video Completion Rate (how many fans watch your 
video in full)

• 500,001 Display Impressions
• .22% Click Through Rate
• 2,630 Total Clicks

29



ESPN Deportes Radio
• Partnering with Deportes Radio to grow male enrollment as a Hispanic Serving Institution
• Implement community-based partnerships to enhance PBSC brand awareness through customer 

experience at Deportes 760AM on-site events
• Promote PBSC enrollment opportunities and spotlight PBSC professionals/alumni to help gain 

new students and retain existing students via Deportes 760am interviews & ESPN Digital 
activation

• Position PBSC as the college of choice for prospective students by educating consumers on PBSC’s 
diverse and exceptional programs of study via ESPN’s platforms

• Tell the story of PBSC 90th anniversary and their dedication to serving educational needs to the 
residents of Palm Beach County through aligning with ESPN talent through on-air endorsements

• Continue to build Palm Beach State College brand credibility, awareness and consideration by 
associating with the #1 sports site in the country, ESPN

• ESPN West Palm to form a true partnership with PBSC by providing expertise media consultation 
and consistent communication on campaign performance to help achieve PBSC goals

30



Jose De Valle – Brand Ambassador

31



Jose De Valle – Brand Ambassador
• A Palm Beach County native and proud PBSC Alumni, Jose is an ESPN 

Deportes journalist and contributing member of the Jorge Ramos Su Banda 
program. He joins the Communidad Deportiva show every Monday and 
Wednesday.

• Jose De Valle spreads the word of Palm Beach State College through live 
reads, commercials, and promotional announcements that air on Deportes 
Radio 760 2x per week.

• He is an authentic storyteller and is passionate to tell his personal story of 
how Palm Beach State College changed his life and set him up for success. 

32



Jose De Valle Social Media Activation
Jose De Valle to post 2x social media posts per month on his personal 

social media accounts, tagging PBSC social media handles.
• Jose Del Valle Followers:

• Twitter/X: 66K
• Instagram: 28K
• Facebook: 9K
• Total: 103K+

33



RHAI 980 AM and 103.9 FM, Haitian Creole Radio

“Sous La” hosted by Marie Laplante 

• Reaching an audience of more than 3,000
• Live Q & A with PBSC representatives

• Weekly broadcasts
• Promotion at live events

34



Spring 2024 Enrollment – Paid Social Media
Social Media Advertisement ran 
Wed., Dec. 6 – Wed., Dec. 13, 2024

Link Clicks: 670
Per Link Click: $0.75
Number of Impressions: 84,171
Accounts Reached: 38,017

Boosted Facebook post ran 
Wed., Jan. 3 – Sat., Jan. 6, 2024

Link Clicks: 61
Other Clicks: 303
Per Link Click: $0.67
Number of Impressions: 9,977
Accounts Reached: 7,205 35



Stephen M. Ross Emerging Scholars Program – Social Media

36



Stephen M. Ross Emerging Scholars Program – Social Media Sentiment

37



Fall 2023 Commencement – Earned Media

The Palm Beach Post
Thomas Cardy Photo Essay
1.39 million reach

The Palm Beach Post
Thomas Cardy Story
1.39 million reach

38



Fall 2023 Commencement – Social Media Sentiment

Graduate posts & Instagram Reels

Posts from family & friends

PBSC faculty & staff

39



Video Production

Palm Beach State College 
celebrates its 90th anniversary

Stephen M. Ross Emerging Scholars Program 
at PBSC grants $8 million to WPB students

Congratulations to the class of 2023!

40



Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees Meeting

National Polo Center

David Rutherford

VP Institutional Advancement
CEO Palm Beach State College Foundation 

January 16, 2024 41



Purpose | Strategic Engagement

National Polo Center | Wellington

Inaugural 2023 Season | January 1 - April 23

• Strategic Relationships & Opportunities

o Engaged with approximately 250 guests

o Wayne Canner | Palm Beach Gardens Living

42



43



2023 - 2024 Season
December 31, 2023 – April 21, 2024

• 16 Sunday Afternoons | 2:00 PM Tailgate | 3:00 PM Polo Match

• Reserved Sideline Hospitality | 15 - 20 Guests Weekly

“If you engage people, you differentiate yourself.”

“If you engage people on a vital, an important level, they will respond.”

Standing invite for all trustees and their guests | Amy Scandrett, contact for Polo

44



Informational Agenda Item 

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 
Agenda Transmittal Sheet 

 

Date:  January 16, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Financial Review and Analysis Staff Contact: Mr. James Duffie, Vice 
President, Finance and Administration 

Category: Report 

 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  This agenda item provides a snapshot of the month-end 
budget and actual revenues and expenses as of 12/31/23. 
 
The College continues to closely monitor revenues and expenses, paying close 
attention to enrollment data as it relates to revenue. 
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Excel - Organizational Vitality. 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 
 

RECOMMEND: For Information Only 

 

Attachments: 

Budget.Analysis.December.31.2023 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

45



2023/24 Year % Current 
Proposed to Date to Original

Budget 12/31/2023 Budget
Revenues:
     Student Tuition & Fees 71,979,043$    48,873,601$    68%
        Less: Legislative Fee Waivers (17,062,040)     (12,710,251)     74%
     Net Student Tuition & Fees 54,917,003$    36,163,350$    66%
     Dual Enrollment Fees 2,000,000$      975,927$         49%
     State Government:  
        FL College System Program Fund 65,047,135$    32,523,567$    50%
        Lottery 13,961,552      6,980,776        50%
        Performance Funding 1,524,062        762,031           50%
        Other 2,396,533        894,983           37%
     Total State Government 82,929,282$    41,161,357$    50%
     Federal Government 551,500           556,905           101%
     Private Grants/Contracts 200,000           325,689           163%
     Sales and Services 1,200,000        568,138           47%
     Interest and Dividends & Gain/Loss on Investments 200,000           674,837           337%
     Other Revenues 390,000           60,646             16%
     Non-Revenue Receipts 1,139,500        570,000           50%
Total Revenue 143,527,285$  81,056,849$    56%

Expenditures:  
     Compensation by Employment Category  
        Instruction 26,644,732$    10,960,104$    41%
        Instructional - Overload 3,700,000        2,353,777        64%
        Adjunct Instructional 12,129,000      6,042,037        50%
        Instructional Management 2,459,000        1,281,571        52%
        Institutional Management 1,505,000        644,410           43%
        Executive Management 2,277,000        1,331,978        58%
        Other Professional 19,040,000      10,775,808      57%
        Staff Part Time 2,700,000        1,127,178        42%
        Technical, Clerical Trade and Service 14,839,000      6,671,883        45%
        Student Assistants 300,000           167,739           56%
        Contingency - Budget Only 500,000           -                      0%

Total Compensation by Categories 86,093,732$    41,356,485$    48%
        Benefits 23,478,627      12,419,060      53%

Total Compensation and Benefits 109,572,359$  53,775,545$    49%

     Current Expenses   
        Professional Development, Travel, & Mileage 734,787$         278,819$         38%
        Freight and Postage 80,706             39,925             49%
        Telecommunications 207,289           114,541           55%
        Printing 137,576           25,242             18%
        Repairs and Maintenance 2,091,088        777,940           37%
        Rentals 309,372           71,144             23%
        Insurance 2,869,270        2,336,461        81%
        Utilities 3,891,998        1,977,229        51%
        Other Services 6,745,205        2,577,105        38%
        Professional Fees 1,612,502        1,070,547        66%
        Materials and Supplies 4,199,352        883,332           21%
        Data Software - Non Capitalized 3,952,660        5,379,081        136%
        Maintenance and Construction Materials 292,926           139,240           48%
        Other Materials and Supplies 853,814           597,159           70%
        Library Resources 663,082           307,631           46%
        Scholarships and Waivers 2,562,081        1,441,190        56%
        Other Expenses 1,001,218        -                      0%
        Contingency 500,000           -                      0%
     Total Current Expenses 32,704,926$    18,016,586$    55%
     Total Equipment 1,250,000        497,200           40%
Total Expenditures 143,527,285$  72,289,331$    50%
Net Revenue (Expense) -$                    8,767,518$      

For the Six Months Ending December 31, 2023
Palm Beach State College

Budget.Analysis.December.31.2023 1/3/2024

46



Informational Agenda Item 

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 
Agenda Transmittal Sheet 

 

Date:  January 16, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Planning and Construction Projects Status Report Dated December 1, 
2023 Staff Contact:  Mr. Kirk Stetson, Manager, Facilities, Planning and 
Construction 

Category: Report 

 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  This report provides a monthly overview of all Facilities 
District Planning and Construction projects collegewide.  Project categories include 
Study Phase, Design Phase and Construction Phase.  The following Report Summary 
highlights the projects that are in the Active Construction Phase.  The attached Active 
Planning & Construction Projects – Status Report provides more detail on each project. 
 
December 1, 2023 – Report Summary 
 
DISTRICT 

• 7 projects 
• 3 projects active construction 

- Classroom Tech - Phase 3 (all campuses)  
- Active Learning Studios - Phase 1 (all campuses) 
- Cash Drop Boxes (all campuses) 

LAKE WORTH CAMPUS 
• 15 projects 
• 4 projects active construction 

- Bldg ETA 128 – SIM Lab Remodel 
- Bldg CM 124 – HVAC Chiller #1 Replacement 
- Bldg CM 124 – HVAC Fan Coil Temp Control 
- SITE – 6th Avenue Phase 1B – QUAD 

PALM BEACH GARDENS CAMPUS 
• 12 projects 
• 2 projects active construction 

- Bldg TGL 300 – TMRW Sports 
- Bldg AD 101 – Stormwater Drainage 

47



Informational Agenda Item 

BELLE GLADE CAMPUS 
• 2 projects 
• no projects active construction 

BOCA RATON CAMPUS 
• 5 projects 
• 1 project active construction 

- Bldg CB 100 - HVAC Upgrades/IAQ 
LOX GROVES CAMPUS 

• 1 project 
• 1 project active construction 

- Bldg 102 – NEW Dental & Medical Tech building 
 
42 Total projects tracking 
11 Projects in construction 
All contract construction projects “on Schedule” and “on Budget” 
 
Financial Impact:  Not Applicable to this report.  Impact to construction and 
maintenance funding is significant and estimated for each project reported. 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  CULTURE: We will create a learning environment 
committed to the success of every student and employee. 
 
Duration of Contract:  Not Applicable to this report, which is updated weekly for 
submission and review by Finance and Administration. 
 

RECOMMEND: For Information Only 

 

Attachments: 

Planning and Construction Projects Schedule dated December 1, 2023 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

48



1

No. Project Building Type Status Design Services Design Cost Design Schedule Construction Services Est Const Cost Const Schedule Funding
1 Clsrm TECH Phase 3 Multiple ELEC EQPT OCI 39,275$        COMPLETE Black DIAMOND 273,658$           PENDING IT/AV CARES
2 Clsrm TECH Phase 4 Multiple ELEC PEND OCI TBD TBD GC Pool BID TBD PENDING CARES
3 Active Lrn'g Studios PH1 Multiple REM EQPT Synalovski 90,000$        COMPLETE PROCTOR Construction 429,430$           PENDING IT/AV CARES/FIPSE/F7
4 Active Lrn'g Studios PH2 Multiple REM TempHOLD Synalovski 90,000$        COMPLETE GC Pool BID TBD TBD CARES/FIPSE/F7
5 DIST-WaterCoolerReplacmnt PH2 Multiple PLMB DESIGN InHouse N/A TBD Sub BIDS TBD TBD CARES
6 Cash Drop Boxes Multiple REM PUNCH LIST InHouse N/A COMPLETE Vendor/InHouse 75,000$             COMPLETE DefMain
7 ERTC BG/LG STDY STDY Song & Associates 26,350$        8/2023-10/2023 TBD 12,000,000$     TBD PECO

1 Bldg ETA 128 - SIM Lab ETA 128 REM CONST Harvard Jolly 283,952$      COMPLETE LEGO - pending 4,337,475$       GMP-12/1 PECO/Donor
2 Bldg LL 113 - Remodeling LL 113 REM/ADD PEND TBD - RFQ Architect HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD CIF/PECO
3 Bldg CF105-Re-Roofing CF 105 ROOF BID Harvard Jolly 20,900$        COMPLETE ADVANCED ROOFING 675,000$           1/2024-4/2024 DefMain
4 Bldg ITB118-AHU Replacement ITB 118 HVAC BID JLRD 41,743$        COMPLETE MECH Pool BID 297,443$          TBD Millage+DefMn
5 Bldg CM124-Chiller #1Replacemnt CM 124 HVAC CONST CAPE 34,187$        COMPLETE Precision Air 795,798$           8/2022-10/2023 CO&DS

5.1 Bldg CM124-FanCoil Temp Cntrl CM 124 HVAC CONST CAPE 26,206$        COMPLETE Precision Air incl ABOVE PENDING DefMain
6 Bldg FN110-AHU Replacement FN 110 HVAC BID CAPE 19,536$        COMPLETE MECH Pool BID 120,000$          TBD DefMain
7 SITE-6th Avenue Phase 1B -QUAD SITE SITE CONST WannemacherJensen 238,231$      Phase 1B-QUAD ALL-SITE Construction 2,300,000$        11/2023-4/2024 CIF/PECO
8 SITE-6th Avenue Phase 2 -ENTRY SITE SITE DESIGN WannemacherJensen TBD Phase 2-ENTRY ALL-SITE Construction 2,600,000$       TBD CIF/PECO
9 Bldg HI 100 - HISTORIC REM HI 100 REN DESIGN Song & Associates 74,500$        11/2023-2/2024 GC Pool BID TBD TBD DefMain

10 SITE-26KVA Electrical Extension SITE ELEC DESIGN OCI 12,570$        COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
11 Bldg ETA128-Cosmetology ELEC ETA 128 ELEC BID Levinson PE 8,500$          COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
12 Sports Master Plan SITE STUDY PLAN HKS 54,000$        COMPLETE N/A N/A N/A Foundation
13 LOWES-Trades Innovation CNTR ETA 128 STUDY PLAN HKS 25,000$        COMPLETE RFQ for CM TBD TBD Donation
14 SITE-Baseball Stormwater Drnge SITE STUDY DESIGN KEITH 39,750$        HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD DefMain
15 E-Sports Remodel CRA 210 REM DESIGN InHouse N/A HOLD InHouse/Sub BIDS TBD TBD CIF/PECO

12/1/2023Active  Planning & Construction Projects - STATUS REPORT
Lake Worth Campus

Italicized Costs represent "Estimates" $10,000
LEGEND: NEW = New Construction; REM = Remodeling; REN = Renovation; HVAC = Air Conditioning Projects; SITE = Site related Work; RED = Changes since last report

DISTRICT

Lake Worth Campus

49



4
No. Project Building Type Status Design Services Design Cost Design Schedule Construction Services Est Const Cost Const Schedule Funding
1A Bldg TGL 300 - TMRW Sports TGL 300 NEW CONST O-SPORTS N/A COMPLETE RR Simmons 50,000,000$     5/2023-12/2024 N/A
1 Bldg AD 101 - Stormwater DrainageAD 101 SITE CONST KEITH 19,500$        COMPLETE Timothy Rose 367,400$           12/2023-4/2024 DefMain
2 Bldg AD 101 - Structural STUDY AD 101 STDY STDY CAPE 12,331$        COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
3 Bldg AU 108 - Structural STUDY AU 108 STDY STDY CAPE 6,497$          COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
4 Bldg AA 102 - CHW Piping AA 102 HVAC DESIGN CAPE 6,824$          COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
5 Bldg CM 118 - Cooling Tower REN CM 118 REN PEND N/A N/A N/A TBD TBD TBD DefMain
6 Bldg LC 107 - Respiratory Care LC 107 REM DESIGN BEA Architects 62,600$        COMPLETE GC Pool BID TBD TBD TBD
7 Bldg CM 103-Generator Replace CM103 EQPT DESIGN SGM 10,400$        COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
8 Bldg AD 101 - Structural STUDY AD 101 STDY STDY CAPE 12,331$        COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
9 Bldg AD 101 - Design STUDY AD 101 STDY STDY Song & Associates 10,250$        PENDING TBD TBD TBD TBD

10 Bldg AU 108 - Structural STUDY AU 108 STDY STDY CAPE 6,497$          COMPLETE TBD TBD TBD DefMain
11 Bldg AU 108 - Re-Roof (Upper) AU 108 ROOF PEND TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD DefMain

6
No. Project Building Type Status Design Services Design Cost Design Schedule Construction Services Est Const Cost Const Schedule Funding

1 Bldg AU 103-HVAC Upgrade AU 103 HVAC PEND SGM 9,640$          TBD MechPool BID TBD PENDING BIDS CO&DS
2 FL Broadband Community Project CRA 100 STDY GRANT InHouse N/A 4/2023-10/2023 TBD TBD TBD GRANT

9
No. Project Building Type Status Design Services Design Cost Design Schedule Construction Services Est Const Cost Const Schedule Funding

1 Bldg BT104-HVAC Upgrade BT 104 HVAC BID SGM 9,640$          COMPLETE TBD 65,000$             TBD Millage
2 Bldg AD 102-Offices AD 102 REM PEND InHouse N/A TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD
3 Bldg AD 102Rms AD 106/107 REM AD 102 REM PEND InHouse N/A TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD
4 Bldg BT 104-Engineering TECH BT 104 REM BID Gurri Matute 18,900$        COMPLETE BIDDING TBD TBD CIF/PECO
5 Bldg CB 100-HVAC Upgrades/IAQ CB 100 HVAC CONST SGM 13,325$        COMPLETE FASTRACK MCI 863,737$           5/2024-7/2024 CARES

10
No. Project Building Type Status Design Services Design Cost Design Schedule Construction Services Est Const Cost Const Schedule Funding

1 NEW-Dental & Medical Tech Bldg 102 NEW CONST Zyscovich 2,517,490$  COMPLETE Kaufman Lynn 54,450,000$     6/2023-1/2025 PECO-Fund 7

Loxahatchee Groves Campus

Belle Glade Campus

Palm Beach Gardens Campus

Boca Raton Campus

Active  Planning & Construction Projects - STATUS REPORT 12/1/2023

50



      Agenda Item: 10.C.1
       Informational
    

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 
Agenda Transmittal Sheet 

 
Date:   1/16/2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: IT Contracts Update 

 
 
Summary: This is a quarterly report of IT contract progress and spend. 
 
Background/Pertinent Facts: The DBOT requested quarterly updates on IT contracts 
that received spend authority at the August 2023 DBOT meeting. 
 
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed: Excel - Organizational Vitality   
 
 
Duration of Contract:  Various 
 
 
RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
 
Attachments: PowerPoint Presentation 
 
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

51



Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees Meeting

IT Project 
Contracts 
Update
Ken Libutti

Chief Information Officer
January 16, 2024

52



Project Detail - Network

• Network Equipment  - located at all campuses
•  Replacement due to age, security and performance

• 10 years old
• Better traffic flow
• Better security features & functionality

• This affects all campuses
• Over 1,100 items require replacement.
• We have spent about $1.2 M on core switches.
• 4 of 8 core switches have been installed. 
• Two more will be installed in the next few months. 
• WiFi Access Point replacements
• SmartNet Renewal for Phone and Network – Annually

53



Project Details – Misc.

• Uninterrupted Power Supply Replacement 
• Obsolete equipment in data closets
• Maintains operations during power failures
• 130 closets.  86 UPS were ordered. 85 installed 

• Replacement Computers – Windows 11
• Improved reliability
• App compatibility
• Advanced hardware that protects devices from 

cyberattacks
• 135 PCs that are not Windows 11 compatible
• $115,425
• Completion by June.

54



Current & Future Projects

• Classroom Projects
• FIPSE Grant to create active learning studios

• 5 are finished w/ refinements
• 7 more by 9/2024

• Boca Campus Engineering Classrooms
• Completion by Fall term
• Approximately $174K equipment and installation

• Sim Lab Equipment
• Completion by June.
• Classroom/Debrief AV rooms installation 

approximately $40K, most equipment already 
purchased.

55



Current & Future Projects

• Classroom Projects
• Respiratory Classroom

• Completion by end of year.
• Approximately $140K equipment and installation

• Massage Therapy Studio Boca Raton - $27K
• Completion by June.

• eSports
• Students develop essential skills such as teamwork, 

communication, and critical thinking.
• Recruiting Tool
• Expected by the end of the year, up to 3 campuses.

56



Contract Vendors

Cisco AVI-SPL B&H Photo Best Buy Stores, L.P.

Bluum USA, Inc. 
(Formerly Troxell 
Communications, 

Inc.)

CDW-G Dell Marketing L.P. GovConnections, 
Inc.

Howard Technology 
Solutions Lenovo

Lenovo Global MNJ Technologies 
Direct, Inc. Trafera LLC

United Data 
Technologies Inc. 

dba UDT
Zones, LLC

57



Quarterly Reporting on Project Spend

Alternate Contract 
Source No. 43220000-
NASPO-19-ACS – $9.3 
M Increase through 
2026

CDW-G through E&I 
Cooperative Services 
Contract #CNR01439 - 
Not to Exceed $2.04M

AVI-SPL through E&I 
Cooperative Services 
Contract #EI00049 - 
Not to Exceed $3.8 M

B & H Photo and 
Electronics Corp 
through E&I 
Cooperative Services 
Contract #EI00221 – 
Not to Exceed $1.395 
M

Vendor Cisco/Presidio CDW Computer Systems AVI-SPL, LLC B&H Photo-Video

Total Spend $658,790.34 $136,592.70 $340,348.79 $99,844.71

58



Quarterly Reporting on Project Spend
(continued)

Omnia Partners contract through Omnia Partners Request for Proposals (RFP) #45-22  
$6.2M Increase through 2027

Vendor Lenovo Dell Corporation Howard Technology Solutions Bluum USA, Inc.

Total Spend $104,277.00 $362,441.92 $26,570.02 $23,765.71

59



Quarterly Reporting on Project Spend
(Summary)

60



Agenda Item:  
      Action 

 
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  January 16, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Approve Contract with Jurney and Associates, Inc. Using the Broward 
County Public Schools Contract #RFP-FY23-239 Guardian School Security 
Services in the Amount of $1,848,096 through December 31, 2025 Staff 
Contacts:  Dr. Delsa R. Bush, Director of Campus Safety and Risk 
Management and Ms. Jennifer Alvarez, Procurement Director 

 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  The college is seeking District Board of Trustees (Board) 
contract approval with Jurney and Associates in the amount of $1,848,096 via the 
School Board of Broward County Contract #RFP FY23-239 Guardian School Security 
Services. 
 
The purpose of this contract is to provide Armed Safe Campus Officers (ASCO) to the 
Lake Worth, Palm Beach Gardens, Belle Glade and Loxahatchee Groves Campuses.  
Armed officers will be added to the existing team of Campus Safety Officers and will 
have extensive training, which will enable them to respond to any incident involving an 
Active Assailant.  
To ensure that PBSC has the most qualified armed officers on our campuses, the vendor 
will provide state-certified security officers, who have been trained pursuant to the Safe 
School Officer/Guardian Program which was mandated by state statute for K-12 
schools. The minimum training requires that officers: 

• Complete a 144-hour training program, which includes comprehensive firearm 
safety and proficiency training conducted by instructors certified by the State of 
Florida Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission (CJSTC).  

• Pass a psychological evaluation administered by a licensed psychologist. 

• Submit to and pass an initial drug test and subsequent random drug tests. 

• Successfully complete ongoing firearms qualification and weapons inspections 
on a regular basis.  

PBSC will continue to rely on the skills and services of our Campus Safety team, who will 
work with their armed counterparts, in providing an optimal environment for 
maintaining the safety of our students, faculty, staff, and campus visitors. 

61



The use of this contract complies with 6A-14.0734(2)(c) Florida Administrative Code, 
purchases at the unit or contract prices established through competitive solicitations by 
any unit of government established by law or buying cooperatives. 
 
Pursuant to District Board of Trustees Policy 1.02, the contract was executed during the 
December District Board of Trustees meeting recess under the President’s authority.  As 
such, District Board of Trustees ratification of the contract award is requested. 
 
Financial Impact:  Estimated $3,696,192 through December 31, 2027. Estimated $924,048 
annually. 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  CULTURE: We will create a learning environment 
committed to the success of every student and employee. 
 
Duration of Contract:  The contract is effective January 2024 through December 31, 
2025, with two, one-year options to renew through December 31, 2027. 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 

Jurney & Associates, Inc. Award Letter & Executed Agreement 

Broward Schools Solicitation RFP FY23-239 Guardian School Security Services 

Jurney and Associates Proposal RFP FY23-239 

Certificate of Insurance GL- E&O-EPLI-A&B Palm Beach State College 

Certificate of Insurance Palm Beach College WC-Crime-Auto-Cyber 

Draft Contract PBSC and JAI for signature 

PBSCandJAIDraft12.14.23 updated after meeting with GC 

PBSCandJAIDraft12.14.23 no markup 

PBSCandJAIContract partially executed 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



 

 

   

Procurement & Warehousing Services 
Mary C. Coker, Director 
7720 W. Oakland Park Boulevard 
Sunrise, Florida 33351 
phone: 754-321-0505 • fax: 754-321-0936 
mary.coker@browardschools.com 
www.browardschools.com/PWS 

April 19, 2023 
 
Kent C. Jurney         Email:kent@teamjai.com  
Jurney & Associates Inc.    Phone:305-446-3433  
782 SW 42nd Avenue 
Miami, Florida 33126 
 
Subject: Letter of Award and Request for Certificate Insurance 
RFP  #: FY23-239 
RFP Title: Guardian School Security Guard 
Contract Term: April 11, 2023 through December 31, 2025 
 
Dear Mr. Yochum:  
 
The School Board of Broward County, Florida has accepted and awarded the above-referenced RFP at the 
4/11/2023 Board Meeting. Please note that this is not a notice to proceed, as a Purchase Orders or Purchase 
Orders will be issued to your firm. 
 
To issue a Purchase Order, your firm must be a registered vendor. Use the link below to register and/or update 
your registration: http://schoolboardofbrowardcounty.supplier.ariba.com/register  
 
Proof of insurance must be submitted to EXIGIS RiskWorks (SBBC’s partner to collect and verify insurance 
documentation) within fifteen (15) days of this notification. EXIGIS RiskWorks will send you an email within 
three (3) business days of this letter with information how to proceed. Insurance certificates can be sent to 
Exigis at certificates-browardschools@riskworks.com  or call the Exigis Customer Service at 646.762.1513 
(PDT) to resolve any discrepancies. Note, this support number is designated for SBBC vendors who have an 
account in Exigis only. 
 
All employees (including subcontractors and agents) who will be entering onto SBBC property must be 
fingerprinted and wear a SBBC issued photo identification badge at all times while on SBBC property. Part of 
the registration requires a PIN Number.  Vendor must send an email direct to: fieldprint@browardschools.com 
to request a PIN Number WITH a copy of this award letter attached to the email.  Information about the process 
can be found at this link: https://www.browardschools.com/Page/40551  If you have questions pertaining to 
identification badges, please contact the Security Clearance Department at (754) 321-2374.  
 
Please note, an identification badge will not be issued and no work can commence until insurance 
form(s) are approved, and a written purchase order is released.  
 
Any service provided or merchandise delivered prior to the receipt of the Purchase Order (PO) is at the 
full risk of the seller. SBBC is not responsible for the payment of any service or merchandise before 
issuing the corresponding PO. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Michelle Wilcox 
Purchasing Agent III 
 
Cc: Suet Cheung, Risk Management 
ATTACHMENT: Insurance requirements pages from Agreement 

The School Board of 
Broward County, Florida 

 

Lori Alhadeff, Chair 
Debra Hixon, Vice Chair 

  
Torey Alston 

Brenda Fam, Esq. 
Daniel P. Foganholi 

Dr. Jeff Holness 
Sarah Leonardi 

Nora Rupert 
Dr. Allen Zeman 

 

Earlean C. Smiley, Ed.D. 
Interim Superintendent 

 

72



 

 

 

INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

Insurance Requirements.  Vendor shall comply with the following insurance requirements throughout the term of this Agreement: 
 
a. General Liability.  Vendor shall maintain General Liability insurance during the term of this Agreement with limits not less than 

$1,000,000 per occurrence for Bodily Injury/ Property Damage; $1,000,000 General Aggregate; and limits not less than $1,000,000 
for Products/Completed Operations Aggregate.  
 

b. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions.  Vendor shall have and maintain Professional liability/Errors & Omissions insurance ith 

a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occourrence or per claim; $3,000,000 Agrgregate. Claims Made policies retroactive date 

must be the same or before the date of award and coverage must be maintained for a period of one (1) year beyond agreement 

covering any services provided under this Agreement including Failure to Provide Services and Third-Party Sexual Misconduct.  

 
c. Workers’ Compensation.  In accordance with Chapter 440, Florida Statutes, Vendor shall have and maintain Workers’ 

Compensation insurance and Employer’s Liability limits of not less than $100,000/$100,000/$500,000 (each accident/disease-each 
employee/disease-policy limit).  
 

d. Auto Liability.  Vendor shall have and maintain Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Auto Liability insurance with Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit. If Vendor does not own any vehicles, it shall have 
and  maintain hired and non-owned automobile liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000. In addition, an affidavit signed by 
Vendor must be furnished to SBBC stating the following: “Vendor does not own any vehicles. If Vendor acquires any vehicles 
during the term of the Agreement, Vendor agrees to provide of proof of “Any Auto” coverage effective as of the date of vehicle 
acquisition.” 
 

e. Acceptability of Insurance Carriers.  The insurance policies required under this Agreement shall be issued by companies qualified 
to do business in the State of Florida and having a rating of at least A- VI by AM Best or Aa3 by Moody’s Investor Service.   
 

f. Verification of Coverage.  Proof of the required insurance must be furnished by Vendor to SBBC’s Risk Management Department 
by Certificate of Insurance within fifteen (15) days of the date of this Agreement. To streamline this process, SBBC has partnered 
with EXIGIS Risk Management Services to collect and verify insurance documentation. All certificates (and any required 
documents) must be received and approved by SBBC’s Risk Management Department before any work commences to permit 
Vendor to remedy any deficiencies. Vendor must verify its account information and provide contact details for its Insurance Agent 
via the link provided to it by email.  
 

g. Required Conditions.  Liability policies must include the following terms on the Certificate of Insurance:   
 
1.The School Board of Broward County, Florida, its members, officers, employees and agents are added as additional insured.    
 
2.All liability policies are primary of all other valid and collectable coverage maintained by The School Board of Broward 
County, Florida. 
 
3.Certificate Holder:  The School Board of Broward County, Florida, c/o EXIGIS Risk Management Services, P.O. Box 4668-
ECM, New York, New York 10163-4668. 

 
h. Cancellation of Insurance.  Vendor is prohibited from providing services under this Agreement with SBBC without first obtaiing the 

minimum required insurance coverage and must notify SBBC within two (2) business days if required insurance is cancelled.    
 

i. SBBC reserves the right to review, reject or accept any required policies of insurance, including limits, coverage or endorsements, 
herein throughout the term of this Agreement. 

 

 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees Meeting

 Jurney and 
Associates, Inc. 

Armed Safe Campus 
Officer Contract  

Dr. Delsa Bush, Ph.D.
Director of Safety and Risk Mgmt

January 16, 2024 93



Armed Safe Campus Officer Program 

Selected Contractor 
Jurney and Associates, 

Inc.

Florida Colleges and 
District School Boards 

use Similar Services

Ten Officers Hired

Provide Continuous 
Coverage from Open to 

Close

Guardian Certified 
Pursuant to State 

Statute

Dedicated Officers 
Integrated into Current 
Campus Safety Services

94



 

95



Contract Highlights 

• Services procured from contractor Jurney and Associates, Inc. utilizing 
existing contract and prices provided to the School Board of Broward 
County 

• Effective Agreement Date: January 2024
• Termination Date of Agreement: December 31, 2025
• Term of Agreement May be extended for two additional one year-

periods through December 31, 2027

96



Implementation Timeline 

Lake Worth 
and Palm 

Beach 
Gardens 

Campuses
January 
8,2024

Belle Glade 
Campus

March 2024

Loxahatchee 
Groves 
Campus

March-April 
2024

Boca Raton 
Campus 
Armed 

Presence 
Provided by 
FAU Police

Current

97



Financial Impact 

Contract engagement through December 31, 2025. 
Estimated annual cost is $924,000.
Hourly rate is $46.

98



Request for Ratification

Request ratification of the contract with Jurney and Associates, Inc. Using 
the Broward County Public Schools Contract #RFP-FY23-239 Guardian 
School Security Services in the Amount of $1,848,096 through December 
31, 2025.

99


	Sheet1
	Agenda
	January DBOT Agenda Final.pdf

	I. MEETING CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	II. COMMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS
	A. Student Comment:   

	III. AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS
	IV. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES
	V. APPROVAL OF BOARD AGENDA
	A. Abstentions by Board Members
	B. Public Comments

	VI. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
	A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
	B. Finance and Administration
	C. Information Services
	D. Human Resources
	1. Approve Revision to Appendix A of the CBA
	Transmittal 6.D.1.docx
	Academic Rank v.4 markup.pdf



	VII. APPROVAL ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA
	VIII. TRUSTEES' COMMITTEE REPORTS
	IX. PRESIDENT'S REPORT
	A. Fall 2023 Enrollment Update
	DBOT - Enrollment Presentation FALL 2023.pptx

	B. Partnership with Related Together
	C. Communications and Public Affairs Update
	Communications and Public Affairs Update.pptx

	D. Polo Engagement for 2024
	January 2024 Polo Report.pptx


	X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
	B. Finance and Administration
	1. Financial Review and Analysis
	Financial.Review&AnalysisCoverSheet-MT.5717.docx
	Budget.Analysis.December.31.2023.pdf

	2. Planning and Construction Projects Status Report Dated December 1, 2023
	ConstructionStatusReportCoverSheet-MT.5881.docx
	Planning and Construction Projects Schedule dated December 1, 2023.pdf


	C. Information Services
	1. IT Project Contracts
	Transmittal IT Contracts Update.docx
	IT Purchase Contracts DBOT.pptx



	XI. ACTION ITEMS
	A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
	B. Finance and Administration
	1. Ratify Contract with Jurney and Associates, Inc. Using the Broward County Public Schools Contract #RFP-FY23-239 Guardian School Security Services in the Amount of $1,848,096 through December 31, 2025
	FY23-239 Guardian School Security Service Solicitation.PDF
	Transmittal - Jurney and Associates Contract 1.16.2024, MT#5892.doc
	JAI.Security.Services.fully.executed.pdf
	Award Letter_Jurney & Associates  FY23-239 (2).pdf
	Jurney & Associates, Inc. Letter & Executed Agreement.pdf
	SafeCampusOfficerContractJurneyAndAssociates.ratify.pptx


	C. Information Services

	XII. OTHER BUSINESS
	XIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
	A. MLK Celebration
	B. February DBOT Meeting
	C. Construction and Contracting Program Best Practices Workshop

	XIV. ADJOURNMENT

